
UNITED STATES ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AGENCY 
REGION 4 

ATLANrA FEDERAL CENTER 
61 FORSYTH STREtT 

Ail,ANTA, GEORGIA 3030:'H:,960 

FEB 16 2012 


VIA CERTIFIED MAIL 

RETURN RECEIPT REQHSTIII! 


Barry M. Reynolds 
Chief Financial Officer 
Sumter Coatings, Inc. 
:!410 Highway 15 Soulh 
Sumter, SC 2Y150-9696 

Re: 	 Sumter Coatings. Inc, 

Consent Agreement and Final Order, Docket Number: RCRA-04-20 12-400J (b} 


Dear "If. Reynolds: 

Enclm.ed is a copy of the fully cxt:Cuted Consent Agreement and Final Order (CAlFO) as filed with the 
Regional Hearing Clerk (RHC) in the above referenced matter. The CAfFO was effective upon tiling 
with the RHC and payment ofthc dvil penalty is to be paid in acconlance with the following schedule. 
calculated (rom the effective d4tte: 

• 56,935.23 withtn thirty (30) calendar days of the effective date of this CNFO 

• $6,935.23 on or before April j 5, 20 \2 

• $6,935.23 on or before July 15,2012 
• $6,935,23 on ()f before October 15, 2012 

• 56,935.23 on or before January 15,2013 

• 56,935.23 on or hefore April 15, 2013 

• 56,935,23 on or bemre July 15, 21113 

• $6,935,23 on or before O.:toher 15, 2013 

In addition to the payment of a civH penalty. the CAiFO also requires Sumter Coatjngs, Inc, (Sumter) to 
develop a personnel training program consistent with the requin.,'IDcnts described in S.c. Code Ann. 
Regs, 61-79.265,16 [40 C.F.R, § 265,16], to develop a sdlooule fur implementation ofthe persOlIDCI 
training program and to identify which facility employees require training. Lastly, within sixty (60) days 
of the etlootive date of the CA/FO, a representative of the company must submit a signed certification 
statement to the U.S. Environmental Protection Agem.:y, care of Larry Lamberth. at the address below: 

Larry L. Lamberth, Chief 
South Section, ReRA & OPA Enforcement and Compliance Branch 
ReM Division 
U,S. EPA - Region 4 
61 Forsyth Street, s.w, 
Atlanta. Gwrgia 30303-8960 
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Also enclosed is a copy of a document titled "Notice of Securities and Exchange Commission 
Registrants' Duty to Disclose Environmental Legal Proceedings," This document puts Sumter on notice 
of its potential duty to disd()se to the Securities and Exchange Commission any environmental actions 
taken by the EPA. 

If you have wy questions:, please teet free to contact Naeha Dixit, Assistant Regional Counsel, at 
(404) 562-9441. 

Sin(:ereiy, 

~~ 
Cesar Zapata, Chief 
RCM and OPA Enfi)rcement and C1.lmpliance Br.mch 
RCRA Division 

Enclosures 



UNITED STATES ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AGENCY 

REr;ION4 


~ 
IN THE MATIER OF: ) DOCKET NO.: RCRA-04-20I2-4()fflb) ;:;:; 

l> ;::::) 
:!i! "" Sumter Coatings Incorporated ) "" 24LO Highway 15 South ) Proceeding Under Section 3008(.).6[010'" 

Sumter, South ClltOlina 29154 ) Resource Conservation and RccovPl( A~ 
EPA 10 No.: SCROOoo03848 ) 42 U.s.c. § 6928(.) "" 5 

) 	 :::x; -'-' 
Responqent ) 	 Q) 

------) 

CONSENT AGREEMENT 

I. NATURE OF THE ACTION 

t. 	 -This is a civil administrative enforcement action. ordenng compliance with the requirements of 
the South Carolina Hazardous Waste Management Act, S.C. Code Ann. § 44·56·1O!l!..!9L, the 
South Carolina Pollution C"utrot Act, S.C. Code Ann. § 48-1·10 et.§!'!!" [collectively, Subtitle C 
of the Resource Conservation and Recovery Act (RCRA), 42 U.S.C. §§ 6921-6939fl, and the 
South Carolina Hazardous Waste Management Regulations (SCHWMR) promulgated pursuant 
thereto and set forth at S.C. Code Ann. Rega. 61-79.260 through 61·79.270 [Title 40 of the Code 
ofFederal Regulations (C.F.R,). Parts 260 through 270]. This action st,~ks injunctive relief and 
the imposition ofcivil penaitios pumrontto Sec'tion 3008(.) of RCRA, 42 U.S.C. § 6928(a), for 
violations of S.C. Code Ann. §§ 48·]·]0 !'! . .§!'!!, and 44-56-30 ~ [Section 3005 of RCM, 
42 U.S.c. § 6925] and S.C. Code Ann. Rega. 6]·79.260 through 61·19.270 [40 C.F.R. Parts 260 
through 270]. 

2. 	 The Consolidated Rules qlPractice Gov~rning the Administrative Asse.'fsrnent o/Civil Penalties 
and the Revocation/Termination or Suspension ofPermits, which govern this action and are 
promulgated a.t 40 C.P.R. Part 22. provide that where the parties agree to settlement ofone or 
more causes of action before the filing of a complaint, a proceeding may be simultaneously 
commenced and concluded by the ISsuance of a Consent Agreement and Final Onk'T (CAlFO), 
40 C.F.R. §§ 22.13(bl and 22.18(b)(2). 

3. 	 Complainant and Respondent have conferred for the purpose of settlement ptm"1Jant to 
4H C.F.R. § 22,18 and desire to settle this action. Accordingly, before any testimony has been 
taken upon the pleadings and without any admission ofviolation or adjudication of any issue of 
fact or law and in accordance with 40 C.F.R. § 22.I3(b), Complainant and Respondent have 
agreed to the execution of this CAJFO, and Respondent hereby agrees to comply with the terms 
ofthi, CA/FO. 

II. THE PARTIES 

4. 	 Cmuplamrutt is the Chief, RCRA and OPA Enforcement and Compliance Branch, RCR. .. 
Divislon, Region 4, United StateS Environmental Protection Agency (EPA). 



5. 	 Respondent is Sumter Coatings. [nc" a corporation incorporated undcr the laws of South 
Carolina, The business is located at 241 () Highway 15 South, Sumter, South Carolina (Facility). 

III. PRELIMINARY ST ATE:\IENTS 

6. 	 Pursuant to Section 3tJtl6(b) of RCRA, 42 U.S.c. § 6926(b), the South Carolina Department of 
Health and Environmental Control (SCDHEC) received authorization to carry out a hazardous 
waste program iii lieu of the federal program set forth in RCRA, The requirements of the 
authorized state program are found at the South Carolina Ha7Alrrlous Waste Management Act, 
S.C. Code Ann. § 44-56-10 et seq., the SouUt Carolina Pollution Control Act, S.c. Cooe Ann.
*48-1-100 et s"!!" and the SCHWMR, S.c. Code Ann. Regs. 61-79.260 through 61-79.270. 

7. 	 Although the EPA has granted the State ofSouth Carolina authority to enforce its own hazardous 
waste program, the EPA retains jurisdiction and authority to initiate an independent enforcement 
action pursuant to Section 3008(.)(2) of RCRA, 42 U.S.c. § 692R(a)(2). This authority is 
exercised by the EPA in the manner set forth in the Memorandum of Agreement between the 
EPA and the St.te of South Carolina. 

8. 	 As the authorized provisions ofSouth Carolina's hazardous waste program operate in lieu of the 
tool.'Tal RCRA program, the citations fur the violations of those authorized provisions alleged 
herein will be to the authorized South Carolina program; however. for ease of reference~ the 
federal citations will follow in bracket.:;. 

9. 	 Pursuant to Section 3008(a)(2) of ReRA, 42 U.S.C. *6928(0)(2), Complainant has given notice 
of this action to the State -ofSQuth Carolina befure issuance ofthit> CAiFO. 

10. 	 Section 44-56-30 of the South Carolilla Code of laws [Section 3002 ofRCRA, 42 U.S.C. 
§ 6922J. requires the promulgation of standards applicable to generators ofhazardous waste, The 
implementing regulations for these standards are found in S.c. Code Ann. Regs. 61-79.262 
[40 C.F.R. Part 262]. 

II. 	 Section 44-5/Hi0 ufthe South Carolina Code of Laws [Section 3005 ofRCRA, 42 U.S.c. 
§ 6925]. ~ts forth the requirement that a fadIity treating, storing. or disposing of hazardous 
waste must have a permit or interim status. The implementing regulations fur this requirement 
are fuund S.c. Code Ann. Regs. 61-79.264 et seg. and 61-29.265 ~ (40 C.F.R. Parts 264 and 
265]. 

12. 	 Pursuant to S.c. Cooe Ann. Regs. 61-79.261.2 [40 C.F.R. § 261.2],. """lid waste" is any 
discarded material that is not otherwise excluded from the regulations. A discard(,"(} material 
includes any maIJ."Iial that is abandoned by being !stured in lieu of being disposed. 

13. 	 Pursuant to S.c. Code Ann. Regs. 61-79.26l.3 [40 C.F.R, § 26l.3], a solid WilSie is a "hazardous 
waste" if it is not otherwise excluded from regulation as a hazardous waste by S,c, Code Ann. 
Regs. 61-79.261.4(b) [40 C.F.R. § 26L4(b)] and it mC(,~s any of the crireri. set forth in S.C. 
Cooe Ann. Regs. 61-79.261.3{a)(2) [40 C.F.R. § 261.3(a)(2)1. 
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14. 	 Putsuunt to S.c. Code Ann. Regs. 61·79.261.3 [40 C.F.R. § 261.3], ",olid waste isa listed 
"bazardous waste" if it is listed in S.C. Code Ann. Regs. 61·79.261 Subpart D (40 C.F.R. Part 
261, Subpart D). 

15. 	 Pursuant to S.c. Code .-\nn. Regs. 61·79.260.10 [40 C.F.R. § 260.IOJ, a "generator" is defined as 
"any person, by :->ite, whose act or process produces hazardous waste identified or listed in 261 
f40 C.F,R. Part 261J) or whose act first causes 11 hazardous waste to become subject to 
regulation," 

16. 	 PursUllllt to S.C. Code Ann. Regs. 61·79.160.10 [40 C.F.R. § 260.10], a "fudlily" includes "all 
contiguous land. and structu.res-, other appurtenances, and improvements on the land. used for 
treating, storing. or disposing of hazardous Wa.'itc," 

1i. 	 Pursuant to S.c. Code Ann. Regs. 61·79.260.10 [40 C.F.R. § 260.10], a "person" includes a 
corporation. 

18. 	 Pursuant"' S.C. Code Ann. Regs. 61·79.260.10 [40 C.F.R. § 260. !OJ, an "owner" is '1he person 
who owns a facility or part ofa faciHty" and an "operator" is "the person respon~ibJe for the 
overall operation of a facility," 

19. 	 Pursuant to S.C. Code Ann. Regs. 6 I·79.261.3(a)(2)(i) [40 C.P.R. *261.3(.)(2)(i)] and S.C. 
Code Ann. Regs. 61-79.261.21 [40 C.P.R. § 261.21], a solid waste that exhibits the characteri,tic 
Qfignitability is a hazardous waste and i:s identified with the EPA Hazardous Waste Nmnbcr 
DOO1. 

20. 	 Pur,uant to S.c. Code Ann. Regs. 61·79.261.3I(a) [40 C.P.R. § 261.31(')J, a solid w',ie is a 
hazardous waste ifit is listed in S.C. Code Ann. Regs. 61-79.261 Subpart D [40 C.F.R. Part 261, 
Subpart D], and is not otherwise excluded by S.C. Code Ann. Regs. 61-79.260.20 or S.C. Code 
Ann. Regs. 61·79.260.22 [40 C.F.R. §§ 2(,0.20 or 260.22] and is listed in Appendix IX 
[Appendix KJ. 

21. 	 Pursuant to S.c. Code Ann. Regs. 61-79.26Ul(.) [40 C.F.R. § 261.31(')J, non·halogenated 
spent solvent wastes from non~s:pecific sources which are listed fur ignitabiHty are identified 
with the EPA Hazardous Wal:ite Number FOO3, and non-halogenated spent solvent wastes from 
non-specific sources which are listed fur ignitabHity and toxicity are identified with the EPA 
Hazardous WiC>te Number F005. 

22. 	 Pursuant to S.c. Code Ann. Regs. 61·79.261.7(a}(2) [40 C.F.R. § 261.7(0)(2)J, any hazardous 
waste in a oontainerthat is not empty, as defined by S.C. Code Ann. Regs. 61·79.261.7(0) 
[40 C.F.R. § 261.7(bl], is subject to rogulation under S.C. Code AIm. Regs. 61.79.261 through 
266,268, 124, and 270 [40 C.F.R. Part, 261·266, 268, 124, and 270]. 

23. 	 PUM"ant to S.C. Code Ann. Regs. 61·79.262.34(.) [40 C.F.R. § 262.34(a)], a generator of 
greater than 1,000 kilograms ofhazardQUS waste in a calendar month may accumulate hazardous 
waste on~sitc tor 90 days or less without a permit Qf without having interim status., as required by 
Section 44·56-60 of the South Carolina C<Jde of Laws [Section 3005 ofRCRA, 42 U.S.C. 
§ 6925], provided that the generator complies with the management requirements listed in 
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S.C. Code Ann. Regs. 61·79.262.34(a)( I )-(4) [40 C.F.R. § 262.34(a)( I )-(4)] (herein.fler retl>m:d 
to as the "Large Quantity Generator Permit Exemption"). 

24. 	 Pursuant to S.C. Code Ann. Reb"" 61-79.262.34(0)(3), a condition of the Large Quantity 
Generator Permit Exemption requires a faciHty to label or clearly mark each container 
accumulating hazardous waste on~site with the EPA Hazardous Waste Number() and the words: 
'''Hazardous Waste - Federal laws prohibit jmproperdisposal." 

25. 	 Pursuant to S.C. Code AM. Regs. 61-79.262.34(a)(2) [40 C.F.R. § 262.34(u)(2)J, a condition of 
the Large Quantity Generator Pennit Exemption requires a facility to ensure that the date upon 
which each period ofaccumulation begins is clearly marked and visible on each container. 

26. 	 Pursuant to S.C. Code Ann. Regs. 61-79.262.34(.)(1 )(i), which incorporates the requirements of 
S.c. Code Ann. Regs. 61-79.265. 175(b)(l), a condition ofthe Large Quantity Generator Pennit 
Exemption requires a facility to ensure that a containment system is designed and operated as 
follows; "A base must lie beneath the containers which is free ofcrocks or gaps and sufficiently 
impervious to contain leaks, spills. and accumulated precipitation until the collected material is 
detected and removed." 

27. 	 Pursuant to S.c. Code Ann. Regs. 61-79.262.34(3)(4) [40 C.F.R. § 262.34(a)(4)], which 
incorporates the requirements of S.C. Code Ann. Regs. 61-79.265.31 [40 C.P.R. § 265.3l], • 
condition of the Large Quantity Generator Permit Exemption requires a facility to be maintained 
and operated to minimIze the possibility of any Implanncd release ofhnzardous waste or 
hazardous constituents to the ,air. soil, or surface water which could threaten human health or the 
enviroruncnt 

28. 	 Pursuant to S.c. Cod. Ann. Regs. 61-79.262.34(3)(4) [40 C.F.R. § 262.34(.)(4)], which 
incorporates the requirements of S.C. Code Ann. Regs. 61-79.265.35 [40 C.F.R. § 265.35J, a 
condition of the Large Quantity Generator Permit Exemption requires the owner or operator of a 
faciHty to maintain aisle space to allow the unobstructed mov{..'ffient ofpersonnel, fire protection 
equipment. spill control t:quipmcnt, and decontamination equipment to any area of tacillty 
operation in an emergency, unless it can be demonstrated that aisle space is not needed for any of 
these purpose>. 

29. 	 Pursuant to S.c. Code Ann. Regs. 61-79.262.34(0)(I)(i) [40 C.ER. § 262.34(.)(1)0)J, which 
incorporates the requirements ofS.C. Code Ann. Regs. 61-79.265.l73(a) [40 C.F.R 
§ 265.173(a)j, a condition of the Large Quantity Genti'I'ator Permit Exemption requires a facility 
to ensure that containers holding hazardous waste are always closed, except when it is necessary 
to add or remove waste. 

30. 	 Pursuant to S.C. Code Ann. Regs. 61-79.262.34(a)(I)(i) [40 C.P.R. § 262.34(a)(J)(i)], which 
incorporates the requirements ofS.C. Code Ann. Regs. 61-79.265. l74 [40 C.P.R. § 265.174],3 
condition of the Large Quantity Grnerdtor Permit Exemption requires the owner or operator of a 
facility to inspect areas where contamers ofh3.7Ardous waste stored at least weekly, "The owner or 
operator must look for leaking l:ontainers and for deterioration of containers and the containment 
systt."1l1 caused by corrosion or other factors. 
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3 L 	 Pursuantto S.c' Cooe Ann. Regs. 61-79.262.34(0)(4), which incorporates the requirements of 
S.C. Code Ann. Regs. 61-79.265.15{d), a condition of the Large Quantity Generaror Permit 
Exemption requires the uwnt:r or operator ofa facility to record inspections in an inspection tog 
or summary, The owner or operator must keep these records at the facility for at least three year$. 
from the date of inspection, At a minimum> these records must include the date and time of the 
inspcctio~ the name of the inspector, a notation of the observations made, and the date and 
nature of any repairs or other remedial actions. 

32. 	 Pursuant to S.c. Code Ann. Regs. 61-79.262.34«)( I )(ii)[40 C.F.R. § 262.34(c)( I l(ii)], a 
condition tor exemption from the requirement to obtain a permit or interim status provided in 
Section 44-56-60 of Ihe South Carolina Cooe of Laws [Section 3005 of RCRA, 42 e.S.C. 
§ 6925] allows a facility to accumulate as much as 55 gallons ofhazardous waste in containers at 
or near any point of generation where wastes initially accumulate (Satellite Accrnnulation 
Containers:) if the Satel1ite Accwnulation Containers are under the control of the operator and the 
!';ontainers are marked either with the words "Hazardous Waste" or with other words that identify 
the contents of the containers. 

33. 	 Pursuant to S.C. Code Ann. Regs. 61-19.262.34{c)(1 IIi) [40 CF.R. § 262.34(e)( l)(i)], which 
incorporates the requirements o[,S.C. Code Ann. Regs. 61-79.265.173(a) [40 C.F.R. 
§ 265.173(a»), a condition for exemption from the requirement to obtain a permit or interim 
status provided in Section 44~56-60 of the South Carolina Code of Laws [Section 3005 of 
RCRA_ 42 U.S.C. § 6925J allows. facility to .ccomula", Satellite Accumulation Containers if 
the containers are under the oontrol of the operator and the containers holding hazardous wa..«tte 
are always closed, except when it is necessary to add or remove waste. 

34. 	 Pursuanl to S.C. Cooe Ann Regs. 61-79.262.11 [40 C.F.R. § 262, II J, a person who generates a 
solid waste must determine if that waste is a hazardous waste. The regulation requires persons 
who generate a solid waste, as defined in S.C. Code Ann. Regs. 61-79.261.2 [40 C.F.R. § 261.2J, 
to detennine if those wastes are hazardous wastes fbllowing the methods articulated in S.c, Code 
Ann. Regs. 61-79.262.11 of the [40 C.F.R. § 262.11]. 

35, 	 Pursuant to S.C. Code Ann. Regs. 61-79.262.34(a)(4) [40 CFR § 262.34{a)(4)], which 
incorporates the requirements of S.C. Code Ano. Regs. 61-79.265.16 [40 CF.R. § 265.16]. a 
.::onditioo of the Large Quantity Generntor Pcnnit Exemption requires a facility to develop and 
implement a complete personnel training program to ensure compliance With hazardous waste 
management regulations. 

36. 	 Pursuant to S.C Cooe Ann. Regs. 61-19.262.34{a)(4) [40 C.F.R, § 262.34(a)(4)]. whlch 
incorporates the requirement, ofS.C. Code Ann. Reg'. 61-19.265.52 [40 C.F.R. § 265.52J, a 
condition of the Large Quantity Generator Pennit Exemption requires a facility to develop a 
contingency plan that is designed to minimize hazards to human health or the environment; to 
describe in its contingency plan the tadlitfs arrangements with local authorities (e.g .. police, 
fire, emergency response) for emergency services; and to list in its oontingency plan the names, 
addressf$;, and phone numbers of emergency coordinators. 

37, 	 PUfl!uant to S.C. Code Ann. Regs. 61-79.262.34(a)(4) [40 C.F.R. § 262.34(a)(4)], which 
incorporates the requinernents ors.c. Code Ann. Regs. 61-79.265.53 [40 C.F.R. § 265.53J, a 
condition of the Large Quantity Generator Permit Exemption requires a facility to maintain at the 
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facility a copy ofthe contingency plan and to suhmit a copy of its contingency plan to aU local 
poiice departments, tire departments, hospitals, and State and local emergency response teams 
that may be called upon to provide emergency services. 

38. 	 PurSuant to S.C. Code Ann. Regs. 61·79.262.34(a)(4) [40 C.P.R. § 262.34(.)(4)], which 
incorporates the requirements ofS.C. Code Ann. Regs. 61·79.265.37 [40 C.P.R. § 265.37], a 
condition of the Large Quantity Generator Permlt Exemption requires a facility to attempt to 
make arrangements with local authorities (I.e., police, fire departments. emergency response 
teams, and hospitals) or to keep documentation of authorities> refusal to enter into response 
arrangements. 

IV. EPA ALLEGATIONS AND DETERMINATIONS 

39. 	 Respondent is a "person" as dC/ined in Section 48·1,10(1) of the South Carolina Code of Laws 
(Soction 1004(15) of RCRA, 42 U.S.C. § 6903(15)] ruld S.c. Code Ann. Regs. 61-79.260.10 
[4Q C.P.R. § 260.10]. 

40. 	 Respondent 1S the "owner/operator'" ofa "facility" located in Sumter, South Carolina. as those 
tenus arc defined in S.C. Code Ann. Regs. 61·79.260.10 (40 C.F.R. § 260.10). 

41. 	 Respondent manufactures paints and coatings fur primarily the steel and fann implement 
manufacturing industries. Respondent blends raw materials onsite to create custom fonnulations 
at the Fadlity. 

42. 	 Respondent is a Large Quantity Generator of hazardous waste. 

43. 	 Respondent's standard procedure is to rinse tanks that tbmlerly contained soivent~hased paint 
ooatings with n solvent mixture that contains xylene, ketone, and toluene. The resulting spcut 
solvent or rinsate is referred to as Dirty Wash. RC!5pondent. as a result of its solvent rinsing 
procedure, is a generator of DOOl , FOO3, and F005 hazardous wastes. 

44. 	 Respondent's standard procedure is to rinse tanks that fomu:rly containoo water~based coatings 
with water. The water-based paint rinsatc is referred to as Wash Water. 

45. 	 On April 14,2010, inspe<.wn; from the EPA and the Bureau of Land and Waste Management. 
South Carolina Department of Health and Envirorunental Control (SCDHEC) (hereinafter the 
Inspectors) performed a ReRA Compliance Evaluation Inspection (CEl) ofRcspondcnt"s 
Facility. The findings of the CEI were documented in an EPA RCRA eEl report, dated August 
16,2010 and a SCDHEC CEI Report, dated January 13, 2QII (collectively CEI ReportS). 

46. 	 At the time fifthe CEI, the Inspectors ob;;erved nine (9) 3OQ.gallon ,teel containers (totes) stored 
in a location in the Facility~s Outside Storage Area. The nine totes formerly held a spent mixture 
ofxylene, ketone, and toluene solvent and paint waste and wen.:: nul entirely empty. According to 
Facility personnel. the material remaining in the totes could occupy as much as lOU/o by volume. 

47. 	 At the Hme of the eEl. the Inspectors observed that the following containers throughout the 
Facility were not properly labeled: 
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a. 	 Sixteen (16) 330-gallon sted totes labeled as "hazardous waste" located in the 
Facility's Hazardous Waste Storage Area were not labeled with EPA Hazardous 
WlL.;;te Numbers, 

b, 	 Sixteen (16) 55· gallon (';ontamers of Dirty Wash accumulating in an area adjal",."Cl1t to 
the mixing tanks on the southern end oflhe Fadlity were not labeled with the words 
"'hazardous waste," were not marked with the required EPA Hazardous Waste 
Numbers, and were not marked with an accumulation start date, 

c. 	 Numerous containers of paint waste and Spellt solvent mixtures ufxyJene, ketone, and 
toluene and a large oversized oontainer utlhzed as a "5-gallon bucket wash" holding 
Dirty Wash located in the Facility's Dispersion Line Area were not labeled with the 
words "hazardous waste" and were not marked with the required EPA Hazardous 
Waste Numbers, Eleven (11) of the containers, including the 5-gallon bucket wash 
container. were not marked with an accumulation start date. 

d. 	 Fourteen (14) containers ofhazardous waste located in the Facility'g 
Shipping/RUCt.1.ving Area were not labeled with the words "hazardous waste," were 
not marked with the required EPA Hazarool.l.<; Waste Numbers, and were not marked 
with an accumulation start date. 

e. 	 :-.line (9) totes iocated in the Facility's OUtdoor Storage Area were labeled with the 
words "hazardous waste.," were not mMked with the required EPA! Iazardous Waste 
Numbers, and were not marked with an aCCWllulation start date. 

48. 	 The EPA therefore alleges Respondent violated Section 44-56-60 Qfthe South Carolina Code of 
Laws [Section 3(J05 of RCRA, 42 U.s.C. § 69251 tor ,toring hazardous waste without. permit or 
interim status, b"'''Cause Respondent failed to meet two conditions of the Large Quantity 
Generator Permit Exemption by not compl>ing with S.c. Code Ann. Regs. 61-79.262.34(.)(2) 
and (3) [40 C.F.R. *262.34(.)(2) and (3)J. 

49. 	 At the time of the eEl, the Inspectors observed that the floor of the Pacility's process building 
wa... serving as the secondary contairuncnt tor; the Hazardous Waste Storage Area:;: the storage 
area adj«eent to the mixing tanks; the Dispersion LIne Area; and the Shipping!Receiv~ng Area. 
The IU!~pectors also observed a concrete floor sump in the Facility's Hazardous Waste Storage 
Area. Both the floor and the floor sump were constructed ofooncrete and were not adequately 
sealed with a coating to be considered sufficiently impervious to contain leaks, spHls. and 
accumulated precipitation Wltil the collected material could be detected and removed, The lack 
of impervious secondary containment increased the possibility of a fire, explosion,. or an 
unplanned sudd(..'1l or non~~;udden release of hazardous waste or hazardous constituents to the 
environment. 

50. 	 At the time of the eEl, the [l1spa.'iOrs observed concrete floor drains in numerous locations 
throughout the Facility's Mixing Tank Area. The floor drains were not adequately sealed with a 
c.oating to he considered sufficiently impervious to contain leaks. spills, and accumulated 
precipitation until the colle;..1ed material could be detected and removed. Furthermore. it was 
unclear as to where the floor drains discharged any collected materials. The floor drains' Jack of 
impervious secondary containment and the unclear discharge location increa..~ the possibility of 
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a fire, explosion, or an unplanned sudden or non-:;udden release of hazardous wnste or hazardous 
constituents to the environment 

51. 	 At the time of the CEI, the Inspectors observed that nine (9) totes of hazardous waste were 
located in the Outside Storage Area. which had a gravel base and did not have adequate 
secondary containment. The gravel base was not sufIiciendy impervious to contaIn teaks. spil1s. 
and accumulated precipitation until the collected material could be detected and removed, The 
laek of impervious secondary containment increased the possibility of a fire, explosion, or an 
unplanned sudden or non·suddcn release of hazardous waste or hazardous constituents to the 
environment. 

52. 	 The EPA therefore alleges Respondent violated Section 44-56-60 oflbc South Carolina Code of 
Laws [Section 3005 ofRCRA, 42 U.S.C. § 69251 for storing hazardous waste without a pennit or 
interim status. because Respondent failed to meet a condition of the Large Quantity Generator 
Pennit Exemption in S.c. Code A.m. Regs. 61-79.262.34(a){1 )(i) by not complying with S.c. 
Code Ann. Regs. 61-79.265,l75(b){l), 

53. 	 The EPA therefore alleges Re.pondc'I1t violated Section 44-56-60 ofthe South Carolina Code of 
Laws [Section 3005 of RCRA, 42 U,S,C. § 6925J for storing hazardous waste without a p"rmit or 
interim status, because Respundent failed to meet a condition of the Large Quantity Generator 
Permit Exemption in S.c. Code Ann. Regs. 61-79.262.J4(a){4) [40 C.F,R. § 262.34(0)(4») by not 
complying with S.c. Code Ann. Regs. 61-79.265.31 [40 C.F.R. § 265.31]. 

54. 	 At the time of the eEl, the Inspectors observed containers of hazardous waste in severnl 
locations of the Facility that were not appropriately spaced to be safely inspected, or to allow the 
unobstructed movt::ment OfperSOlUlCl, fire protection eqUipment, and/or spill control equipment 
in case of an emergency. 

55, 	 The EPA therefore alleges Respondent viol.ted Section 44-56-60 of the South Carolina Code of 
Laws [Section 3005 of RCRA, 42 U.S.C. § 6925J for storing hazardous waste without a permit or 
interim status, because Respondent tailed to meet a condition of the Large Quantity Generator 
Permit Exemption io S.c. Code Ann, Regs. 61-79.262.34(a)(4) [40 C.P.R. § 262.34(0)(4)] by not 
complying with S.c. Code Ann. Regs. 61-79.265.35 [40 C.F.R. § 265.35J. 

56. 	 At the time of the eEl, the Inspectors observed numerous containers Qfhazardous waste that 
were did not have lid'! and were open to the atmosphere. These containers included: 

11. 	 Numerous containers ofpaint waste and spent solvent mixtures of xylene, ketone, and 
toluene and a large oversized container utilized as a "5-gallon bucket washn holding 
Dirty Wash located in the Facility's Dispersion Line Area. 

b. 	 One (I) 55-gallon drum with sludge like waste and dirty mop heads saturated with 
solvent located in the Shipping/Receiving Area. 

c, 	 At least three (3) totes ofhazardous waste in the Ontside Storage Area. 

57. 	 The EPA therefore alleges Respondent "olated Section 44-56-{!O "fthe South Carolina Code of 
Laws [Section 3005 of RCRA, 42 U,S,C. § 69251 lor storing hazardous waste without a penni! or 
interim status. because Respondent failed to meet a condition of the Large Quantity Generator 
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Pennit Exemption in S,C, Code Ann, Regs, 61·79,262,34(a)(I)(i) [40 C.F,R, § 262,}4(0)(1)(;)] 
hy not complymg with S,C, Code Ann, Regs, 111-79265.173(0) [40 Cr,R § 265, 173(a)J, 

At the time of the eEL the Inspectors reviewed the FacHity's 2010 weekly inspection Jog. The 
records failed to note the time ufthe weekly inspections, the name of the r(.«.;lity's inspector, any 
notations of observations made. and any deficiencies requiring remedial action. The inspection 
log failed to identify any additional hazardous waste containers located oUUiide of the FacHity's 
less than 90~day sturage area. The ha7..ardous waste containers that were not being insptX.'teti 
include containers stored in areas such as the Outside Storage Area, the Mixing Tank Area, and 
the Shipping Receiving Area, which all stored containers ofha7Mdous waste. 

5&, 	 The EPA therelore alleges Respondent violated Section 44·56-60 of the South Carolina Cooe of 
Laws [Section 3005 of ReRA. 42 U.s,C. § 6925J for "oring hazardous waste without a permit or 
interim status. because Respondent failed to m,,'Ct a condition of the Large Quantity Generator 
Penni! Exemption in S,c, Code Ann, Regs, 61-79,262.34(.)( I )(1) [40 C,F,R, § 262,34(.)( I )(i)] 
by not complying with S,C. Cooe Ann, Regs. 61·79.265,174 [40 C.F,R, § 265,174J, 

59. 	 lhe EPA thcrelore alleges Respondent violatoo Section 44-56·60 of the South Carolina Code of 
Laws [Section 3005 of ReRA, 42 U.s.c, § 6925] for storing hazardous waste without a pennit or 
interim status. because Respondent failed to meet a (..'tmdltion of the Large Quantity Generator 
Permit Exemption in S,c, Code Ann, Regs. 61·79,262,34(.)(4) [40 C.F.R, § 262.34(,)(4)J by nut 
complying with S,c, Code Ann, Regs, 61-79.265.15(d) [40 C.F.R, § 265, IS(d)], 

60. 	 At the time of the eEl. tilt; Inspectors observed numerous Satellite Accumulation Containers that 
were not marked with the words "Hazardous: Waste" or with other words that identified the 
contents ofthe containers, These unmarked Satellite Accumulation Containers included: 

a. 	 One (1) 55-gaHon contain4-,,! located in the Aerosol Can FiHing Area, which was being 
used to collect waste or spent paint. 

b. 	 Four (4) 55~gallon cl.mtamers located in the Mixing Tank Area, which were being 
used to con~.,'t Dirty Wash as it was being generated. 

c. 	 Several 5~gallon containers located in the Quality ControllR&D Lab, which were 
being used to collect wa.-"lte solvent andlor spent paint. 

61. 	 The EPA therefore alleges Re,;pondent violated Section 44·56-60 of the Suuth Carol in. Cooe uf 
Laws [Section 3005 ofRCRA. 42 U.S.C. § 6925] fur storing hazardous wa'i~te without a pennit or 
interim status, because Respondent failed to meet a condition for exemption from the 
requirement to obtain a permit or interim status by not complying with S.C Code Ann. Regs. 61
79.262,34(c)(I)(ii) [40 C.F,R, § 262,34(<:)(I)(ii)J, 

62, 	 At the time of the CEI, the In!iptx..iors observed that the folIQwing Satelljte Accumulation 
Containers were open to the atmosphere: 

3.. 	 Three (3) 5-gallon Sate1lite Accumulation Containers 1n th~ Facility'S: Aerosol Can 
Filling Area were open to the atmosphere. 
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b. 	 Four {4) 55~gullon SateUite Accumulation Cuntainers in the Facility's Mixing Tank 
Area were open to the atmosphere, 

63. 	 The EPA therefore alleges Respondent violated S«:tion 44-56-60 ofthe South Carolina Code of 
Laws [Section 3005 ofRCRA, 42 U.S.C. § 6925] for storing hazardous waste without a permit or 
interim status, because Respondent failed to meet a condition for exemption from the 
requirement to obtain a pennit or Jnterim status provided in S.C. Code Ann. Regs. 61 ~ 
79.262.34(0)(1)(i) [40 C.P.R. § 262.34(c)(I)(i)] by not complying with S.C. Code Ann. Regs. 61
79.265.173(3) [40 C.P.R. § 265.173(a)]. 

64. 	 At the time ufthe eEl. Respondent had not made a hazardous waste determination on certain 
solid wastes. including two (2) dirty or spent mop heads in a solid waste container located inside 
the Shippin;¥Rccciving Area and one hundred fourteen (114) 330-gallon plastic totes containing 
Wa"lh Water located at the rear of the Facility's property 

65. 	 The EPA therefore alleges that Respondent is in violation ofS.C. Code Ann. Regs. 61-79.262.1 J 
[40 C.F.R. § 262.11] by failing to make a hazardous waste determination on solid waste 
generated at its Facility. 

66. 	 At the time Qfthe eEl, the Inspectors reviewed RcspondenCs training documentation, which 
failed to confirm or document that introductory and annual training had been conducted. The 
Respondent failed to ensure that its employee training program was directed by a person with 
current and up-to-date training certification to train others in hazardous wa,ste management 
procedllres, Respondent failed to provide training to all the required personnel who handle or 
manage hazardous waste at the Facility. 

67. 	 The EPA therelore alleges Respondent violated Section 44-56-60 ofthe South Carolina Code of 
Laws [Section 3005 of RCRA, 42 U.S.C. § 6925] for storing hazardous waste without a permit or 
interim status.. because Respondent failed to meet a condition of the Large Quantity Generator 
Permit Exemption in S.C. Code Ann. Reg'. 61-79.262.34(a)(4) [40 C.F.R. § 262.34(.)(4)1 by not 
complying with S.C. Code Ann. Regs. 61-79.265.16 [4<J C.F.R. § 265.16]. 

68. 	 At the time of the CEI. the Inspectors reviewed the Respondent's Contingency Plan, titled 
"Sumter Coatings, Ine., Disaster Plan," dated October 12, 2004. The Contingency Plan did not 
list the Facility's Primary Emergency Coordinator and Secondary Emergency Coordinator or 
include addresses or telephone numbers of current employees qualified to act as emergency 
<::oordinators. The Contingency Plan did not contain documentation or correspondence relative to 
Respondent's arrangements nnd agreements with emergency responders and local hospitals 

69. 	 The EPA therefore alleges Respondent violated Section 44-56-60 of the South Carolina Code of 
Utws [Section 3005 nfRCRA, 42 U.s.C. § 69251 for storing hazardous w..te without a permit or 
interim status, because Respondent failed to meet a condition of the Large Quantity Generator 
Pennit Exemption in S.C. Code Ann. Regs. 61-79.262.34(0)(4) [4<J C.F.R. § 26234(a)(4)] by not 
complying with S.C. Code Ann. Regs. 61-79.265.52 [40 C.F.R. § 265.52]. 

70, 	 The EPA therefore alleges Respondent violated Section 44~5(}..6{) of the South Carolina Code of 
Laws [Seetion 3005 ofRCRA, 42l:.8.C. § 6925] for storing hazardous waste without a permit or 
interim status, because Respondent failed to meet a condition of the Large Quantity Gtmerator 
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Permit Exemption in S.C. Code Ann. Reg•. 61-79.262.34(a)(4) [40 C.F.R. § 262.34(.)(4)] by not 
complying with S.c. Code Ann. Regs. 61-79.265.37 [40 C.F.R. § 265.37]. 

71. 	 The EPA therefore alleges Respondent violated Section 44~56~60 of tile South Carolina Code of 
Laws [Section 3005 ofRCRA, 42 [;.3.C. § 6925J for ,toring hazardous waste without a permit or 
interim status. because RcsPQndent failed to meet a condition of the Large Quantity Generator 
Permit Exemption in S.c. Code Ann. Regs. 61-79. 262.34(a)(4) [40 C.F.R. § 262.34(a)(4)] by not 
complying with S.C. Code Ann. Regs. 6l-79.265.53 [40 C.F.R. § 265.531. 

V. TERl,\1S ot' AGREEMENT 

Based On the tbr~g()ing Preliminary Statements, AHegatioru; and Determinations. the parties agree to the 
following: 

72. 	 For the purposes ofthls CAlFO, Respondent admits the jurisdictional allegations set out in the 
above paragraphs purnuant to Section 3008 of RCRA 42 U.S.c. § 6928. 

73. 	 Respondent neither admits not denies the factual allegations and determinations set out in tnis 
CAlco. 

74. 	 Respondent waives any right to contest the allegations and its right to appe.al the proposed Final 
Order accompanying the Consent Agreement 

75. 	 Respondent waives its right to cbaHcnge the validity of this CA!FO and the settlement of the 
matters addressed in this CAiFO based on any issue related to the Paperwork Reduction Act. 

76. 	 Respondent waives any right it may have pursuant to 40 C.F.R. § 22.8 to be present during any 
discll.."!sions with. or to be served with and reply to, any memorandum or communicatlon 
addresBcd to EPA officials where the purpose ofsuch discussion, memorandum. or 
communication is to persuade such officiallO accept and issue this CAJFO. 

77. 	 The parties agree that the settlem~'l1t of this matter is in the public interest and that this CAJFO 1S 
consistent with the applicable requirements of RCRA. 

7R. 	 Respondent, by signing this CAlFO, certifies that Respondent is currently in compliance with 
RCRA and the authorized South Carolma hazardous waste program. 

19. 	 The parties agree that compliance with the terms of this CAJFO shall rt,."SOlve the violations 
alleged and the facts stipulated to in this CAiFO. 

80. 	 Each party will pay its own costs and attorney's fees. 

VI. WORK TO BE PERFORMED 

Respondent shaH develop a personnel training program consistent with the rCtluirements 
deseribed in S.c. Code Ann, Regs. 61-79.265.16 {40 c'F.R § 265.16\. Respondent shall al<o 
develop a schedule for implementation of the personnel training program and shaH identity 
which Facility empluyees require training. 
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~2. 	 Within 60 days of the effective date of this CAiFO, Respondent shall submit to the EPA a 
certification signed by Respondent's representative, which states: .as follows: 

"I certify under penalty of law that Sumter Coatings, Inc, is now in compliance with the training 
requirements ofS.C. Code Ann. Reg:;. 61-79.265.16 [40 C.F.R. § 265.16}. Specifically, [ certify 
under penalty oflaw that Sumter Coatings, Inc. has developed a personnel training program; that 
it has developed a schedule for implerm,,>ntation of the personnel training program: and that it has 
implemented an employee training program directed by a person with current and up~«Hlate 
tmining certificatIon to train others in hazardous waste management procedures." 

This certHication shaU be sent to the EPA care of Larry Lamberth at the address below: 

Larty L. Lamberth, Chief 
Suuth Section. RCRA & OPA Enforcement and Compliance Branch 
RCRA Divi~ion 
U.S. EPA - Region 4 
61 Forsyth Street, g. W. 
Atlanta, Georgia 30303-8960 

VII. PAYMENT OF CIVIL PENALTY 

83. 	 Respondent consents to the payment of a civil penaJty in the amount of FIFTY~FIVE 

THOUSAND DOLLARS ($55,000.00), plus interest of 1.00% per annum, which is to be paid in 
accordance with the following schedule: 

• $6,935.23 within thirty (30) calendar days ofibe effective date of this CfVFO 
• $6,935,23 on or before April 15.2012 
• $6,935.23 on or betore July 15, 2012 
• $6,935.23 on or before October 15, 2012 
• $6.935.23 on or before January J5,2013 

• $6.935.23 on or before April 15, 20 i3 
• 56,935.23 un or before July 15. 2013 
• $6,935.23 un or before October 15, 2013 

[f Respondent fails to make a scheduled payment fOf 30 days afier the due date. all subsequent payments 
become immediately due and payable on the 31 st day from such due date, 

g4. 	 Payment shaH be made by cashier's check, certified check, by electronic funds transfer (EFT), or 
by Automated Clearhouse (ACH) (also known as REX or r<mitt""ce express). Ifpaying by 
check. the check shall be payable to; Treasurer, United States of America. and the facility 
name and docket number for this matter shall be referenced 011 the face of the check. If 
Responde'llt sends payment by the U.S. Postal Service, the payment shall be addressed to: 
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United States Environmental Protection Agency 
Fines and Penalties 
Cincinnati Finance CentL"C 
P.o. Box 979077 
St. Louis, Missouri 63197·9000 

If Respondent sends payment by nQn~U.S. Postal express mail delivery, the payment shall 
be sent to: 

u.s. Bank 
Government Lockbox 979077 
U.S. EPA Fin.. 8< Pen.ltie. 
1005 Convention Plaza, 
SI?M0-C2·GL 
St.lou;s, Mi"'ouri 63101 
(314) 418-1028 

If paying by EFT, Respondent shall transfer the pa)menl 10: 

Federal Reserve Bank of New York 
ABA: 021030004 
Acconnt Number: 68010727 
SWIFT address: FRNYUS33 
33 Liberty Street 
New York New York 10045 
Field Tag 4200 of the Fedwire message should read: 
"D 68010727 Environmental Protection Agency" 

If paying by ACE, Respondent shall remit poymcnt to: 

PNC Bank 
ABA: 051036706 
Account Numher: 310006 
eTX Format Transaction Code 22 - checking 
Enviromnental Protection Agency 
808 17" Street NW 
WashinglDn, D.C. 20074 
Contact: Jesse White. (301) 887·6548 

85, Respondent shall submit a copy ofeach payment to the following addresses: 

Regional Hearing Clerk 
U.S. EPA - Region 4 
61 Forsyth Street. S.W. 
Atlanta, Georgia 30303-8960 
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And to: 

Larry L. Lamberth, Chief 
South Section. RCRA & OPA Enforct,'11lent and Compliance Branch 
RCRA Division 
U.S. EPA - Region 4 
61 ForsythStrcet, S.W. 
Atlanta, Georgia 30303-~960 

86. 	 If Respondent falls to remit the civil penalty as agreed. to herein, the EPA is required to assess 
interest and penalties on debts owed to the United States and a charge to cover the costs of 
processing and handling the delinquent claim. Interest, at the statutory judgment rate provided 
for in 31 U,S.c. § 3717, will therefore begin to accrue on the civil penalty if not paid within 30 
calendar days after the effective date of this Consent Agreement. Pursuant to 31 U.S.C. § 3717, 
Respondent must pay the following amounts on any amount overdue: 

a. 	 Intere::>t. Any unpaid portion of a civil penalty or stipulated penalty must bear interest 
at the rate established by the Secretary of the Treasury pursuant to 31 U.S,C, 
§ 3717(a)( 1). (nterest win therefore begin to accrue on a civil penalty or stipulated 
penalty if it is not paid by the last date required. interest will be asS\::ssed at the rate of 
the United States Treasury tax and loan rate in accordance with 4 C.P.R, § 102.13(c). 

b. 	 Monthlv ft.gndling Charge, Respondent must pay a tate payment handling charge of 
fifteen dollars ($15.00) on any late payment. with an additional charge of fifteen 
dollars (S 15.00) for each subsequent thirty (30) calendar-day period Qver which an 
unpajd balance remains, 

c. 	 )Jon-Pa}'fIlent Penalty, On any portion ofa civil penalty or a stipulated penalty more 
than ninety (90) calendar days past due, Respondent must pay.a non-paymeIll penalty 
ofSlX percent (6%) per anmnn, which will accrue from the date the penalty payment 
became due and is not paid. This non~payrnent is: in addition to charges which accrue 
or may accrue under subparagraphs (aJ and (b). 

87. 	 Penalties paid pursuant to this CAlFO are not daductible for feder.u purposes under 26 U.s.C 
§ 162(1). 

VIII, PARTIES BOUND 

gg, 	 This CA/FO shall be binding on Respondent and its successors and assigns, Respondent shaH 
cause its officers, directors, employees, agents, and all pcrsons. induding independent 
contractors, contractors, and consultants acting under or for Respondent, to comply with the 
provisions hereof in connection with any activjty subject to this CAJFO. 

89, 	 No change in ownership, partnership. corporate or legal status relating to the Facility will in any 
way alter Respondent's obligations and responsibilities under this CAiFO. 

90. 	 The undersigned representative of Respondent hereby certifies that she or he is fully authorized 
to enter into this CAIFO and to execute and legally bind Respondent to it 
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IX. RESERVATION OF RIGHTS 

91. 	 Notwith~tanding any other provision fif this CAfFO. an enforcement action may be brought 
pursuant to Section 7003 of RCRA. 42 U$C. § 6973. or other statutory authority, should the 
EPA lind that the handling, storage, treatment, transport.tion, or disposal of solid waste or 
hazardous waste at Respondent's Facility may present an imminent and substantial 
endangennent to human health or the envIronment. 

92. 	 Complainant reserves the right to take enfurcement actton against Respondent for any future 
violations ofRCRA and the implementing regulations and to enfon.:e the tenns and conditions of 
thisCNFO. 

93, 	 Except as expressly provided herein, nothing in this CNFO shaH constitute or be construed as a 
release from any civil or criminal claim, cause of action. or demand in law or equity for any 
liability Respondent may have arising out of. or relnting in llrty way to, the transportation, 
release. or disposal of any hazardous constituents, haLatdous substances, hazardous wastes, 
pollutants, or contaminants found at. taken to, or taken from Respondent's Facility. 

94. 	 This CA/FO may he amended or modified only by written agreement executed by both the EPA 
and Respondent. 

X. OTHER APPLICABLE LAWS 

95. 	 All actions required to be taken pursuant to this CA/FO shall he undertaken in accordance with 
the requirements of all applicable local, state, and Federal laws and regulations. Respondent shall 
ohtain or cause its representatives to obtain all permits and approvals necessary under such laws 
and regulations. 

XI. SERVICE O~' DOCUMENTS 

96. 	 A copy of any documents that Respondent files in this action shall be sent to the following 
attomcy who represents EPA in this matter and who is authorized to receive service tor EPA in 
this proceeding: 

Nacha Dixit 
Associate Regional Counsel 
otoee ofRCRA, OPA nnd UST legal Support 
U.S. Enviromnental Protection Agency, Region 4 
61 Forsyth Street, S.W. 
Atlanta, Georgia 30303·8960 
(404) 562-9544 

97. 	 A copy ofany documents that Complainant fiJes in this action shall be sent to the following 
individual who represents Re:s:pondent in this matter and who is authorized to receive service for 
Respondent in this proceeding: 
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Burry M. Reynolds 
Chief Financial Officer 
Sumter Coatings, Inc. 
2410 Highway 15 South 
Sumter, South Carolina 29150-9696 
(803) 481-3400 ext 14 

XII. SEVERABILITY 

93. 	 It is the intent of the parties that the provisions of this CAIFO are severable. rf any provision or 
authority oftbis CAJPO or tbe appHcatiotl oftbis CAfFO tu any party Of circwnstances is held by 
any judicial or administrative authority to be invalid or unenforceable, the application of such 
provisions to other parties or circumstances and the remainder of lhe CAiFO shall remain in 
force and shaU not he atlectet.i thereby. 

XIII. EFFECTIVE DATE 

99. 	 The effective date ofthis CNfO shall be the date on which the CAIFO is filed with the Regional 
Hewing Clerk. 

111 the matter ofSumter Coating. Incorporation, Docket No. RCRA-04-20124001(b): 

AGREED A:>ID CO:>lSENTED TO: 

Sumter Coating, Inc~ 

/,1 /1 5/
,d;;~t'! ?If ;;'I(('~By; 

mm, I 
Barry M. Reynolds 

Chief Financial Officer 

Sumter Coatings, Inc, 


United States EnvirQnmental Protection Agency 

1 

By; Dated: 01- 114./17
cesar A. Zapata. Chi f 

RCRA and OPA Enforcement and Compliance Branch 

ReRA Division 
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t:NITED STATES ENVIRON:\IENTAL PROTECTION AGENCY 
REGION 4 

IN THE MATTER OF: ) DOCKET NO.: RCRA-04-2012-4001(b) 
) 

Sumter Coatings Incorporated ) 
2410 Highway IS SOUUI ) Proceeding Under Section 3008(a) of the 
Sumter, South Carolina 29154 ) Resource Conservation and Recovery Act. 
EI' A JD No.: SCROOOOO3848 ) 42 U.S.C. § 6928(0) 

) 
Respondent ) 

.~.---l 

FINAL ORDER 

The foregoing Consent AgreemL'tlt is hereby approved, ratified and incorporated by reference into this 
Final Order in accordance with the Consolidated Rules o/Prat;tice Governing the Administrative 
,4ssessment a/Civil Pena./lies llnd the Revocation/Termination or Suspension ofPermits, 40 C.F.R . •Part 22. The Respondent is hereby ORDERED to comply with all of the terms ofllie toregoing Consent 
Agreement effective immediately upon filing of this Consent Agreement and Final Order with the 
Regional Hearing Clerk. 111is Order disposes of this matter pursuant to 40 C.F.R. §§ 22.18 and 22.3l. 

>,;;< . :1 L __ 
BEING AGREED, IT IS SO ORDERED this ~L.CdaYQf~~_~ 2012. 

BY: 
Susan B. Schuh 
Regional Judicial Officer 
EPA Region 4 



CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE 


I h.",by certify that I have this day filed the original and a true and correct copy of the tbregoing 

Consent Agreement and the attached Final Order (CAlFO), in the Matter of Sumter Coatings Inc., 

Facility, Docket Number: RCRA-04-2012-4001(b), and have served the parties listed below in the 

manner indicated: 

@-llo -I;) '.,.£tiJ1.t\ 

Naeha Dixit (Via EPA's electronic mail) 
Associate Regional Counsel 
Office of RCRA, OPA and UST Legal Support 
U.S. Environmental Protection Agency, Region 4 
61 Forsyth Street, S.W. 
Atlanta, Georgia 30303-8960 

Quantindra Smith (Vi. EPA's electronic mail) 
RCRA and OPA Enforcement and Compliance Branch 
RCRA Division 
U.S. Environmental Protection Agency, Region 4 
61 Forsyth Street, S.W. 
Atlanta, Georgia 30303-8%0 

Barry M. Reynolds (Vi. Certified Mail- Return Receipt 
Chief Financial Officer Requested) 
Sumter Coatings.. Inc. 
2410 Highway 15 South 
Sumter, SC 29150-96% 

'\' 
Date: 

Patricia A. Bullock 
Regional Hearing Clerk 
U.S. Environmental Protection Agency. Region 4 
61 Forsy1h Street, S.W. 
Manta, Georgia 30303-8960 
(404) 562-9511 


